
 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 1 of 6 

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY BOARD  

CITY OF RAMSEY 

ANOKA COUNTY 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 

On Monday, August 20, 2018, the Environmental Policy Board (EPB) met in the Lake Itasca Room 

at the Ramsey Municipal Center, 7550 Sunwood Drive N.W., Ramsey, Minnesota. 

 

Members Present: Chairperson Michael Valentine 

   Board Member Jane Covart 

   Board Member Melissa Fetterley 

   Board Member Michael Madison 

   Board Member Laura Moore 

 

Members Absent:  Board Member Reid Bernard 

   Board Member Michael Hiatt 

 

Also Present:  City Planner Chris Anderson 

   City Council Liaison John LeTourneau 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairperson Valentine called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. CITIZEN INPUT 

 

None. 

 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 

 

Motion by Board Member Covart and seconded by Board Member Fetterley to approve the agenda 

as submitted. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Valentine, Board Member Covart, Fetterley, Madison, 

and Moore.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard and Hiatt. 

 

4. APPROVE MINUTES 

 

4.01: Approve Meeting Minutes Dated July 16, 2018 

 

Motion by Board Member Covart and seconded by Board Member Madison to approve the regular 

meeting minutes dated July 16, 2018. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Valentine, Board Member Covart, Madison, Fetterley, 

and Moore.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard and Hiatt. 

 

5. POLICY BOARD BUSINESS 

 



 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 2 of 6 

5.01: Consider Landscape Plan for Bunker Lake Industrial Park 2nd Addition  

 

City Planner Anderson presented the staff report.  He stated that the City has received an 

application for Final Plat and Site Plan for a new industrial building to be located within the Bunker 

Lake Industrial Park (BLIP).  The submittal package includes a Landscape Plan per the 

requirements of City Code Section 117-124.  Based on the initial tree removal for the entire BLIP 

project area, which consists of approximately 45 acres, there are also reforestation requirements 

that must be satisfied.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau referenced the reforestation requirement and asked for 

additional details. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that the overall site is well deficient on the overall number of inches 

that will be required.  He stated that this plan meets the base landscaping requirements for this one 

building site, but additional planting will need to continue to occur on the remainder of the site as 

well.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau stated that it seems then that the tally of trees being replanted is 

being tracked and will continue to be tracked as development on this overall site continues. 

 

City Planner Anderson provided additional clarification on the tree preservation ordinance and 

noted that if the replacement trees cannot all be provided on the site; the developer could also pay 

into the City’s fund that is used to plant trees throughout the community. 

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau stated that the developer has done a great job on the development 

that occurred in the business park thus far, providing a quality product.   

 

Motion by Board Member Covart and seconded by Board Member Madison to recommend 

approval of the Landscape Plan contingent upon compliance with the Staff Review Letter. 

 

Motion carried.  Voting Yes: Chairperson Valentine, Board Member Covart, Madison, Fetterley, 

and Moore.  Voting No: None.  Absent:  Board Member Bernard and Hiatt. 

 

5.02: Review Request for an Amendment to the Current Topsoil Standard  

 

City Planner Anderson presented the staff report.  He stated that the City has received a written 

request to consider an amendment to the current topsoil requirement.  Presently, the issuance of 

any Building Permit for a new principal building (residential and commercial/industrial buildings) 

triggers installation of four inches of topsoil meeting MnDOT’s Premium Topsoil Borrow 

specification, across all disturbed areas not otherwise improved with impervious surfaces (e.g. 

building, walkways, driveways, etc.).  Staff has not prepared any draft ordinance amendment but 

did want to initiate a discussion with the EPB about what information will be helpful for a future 

discussion on this topic.  He stated that staff received an email this afternoon from PSD, which he 

provided to the Board prior to the meeting, and stated that PSD would like to leave the topsoil 

requirement as is and focus more on education on the homeowner level.  He stated that part of the 

concern is that perhaps the first homeowner is aware of the topsoil requirement, however when the 

property changes ownership the information is not passed on to future owners.  He stated that staff 



 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 3 of 6 

continues to research water conservation techniques and it is becoming apparent that the most 

effective water conservation tool is the smart sensor technology for inground irrigation systems.   

 

Board Member Covart asked what would happen if there is not enough topsoil. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that presently the City’s engineering staff does the topsoil inspection 

and provided additional details.  He stated that if the sod is laid prior to inspection the builder 

would need to roll back the sod to allow for the inspection. 

 

Board Member Fetterley stated that she would like to see comparisons from other communities.  

She stated that as a recent homeowner in the community they installed a smart sensor without 

knowing the requirement of the City.  She stated that they have seen a decrease in their water bill 

after installing that technology.  She noted that if builders are installing the smart sensor, there 

should not be an issue with over watering going forward.  She agreed that education of existing 

homeowners and with the change in ownership of property would be helpful but noted that if the 

smart sensor is installed that should prevent over watering. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that the irrigation amendment was done more recently and agreed 

that the City should not see the issue as much moving forward.  He stated that the cost to meet the 

topsoil requirement for the smaller lots is about $5,000, while the cost to meet the requirement for 

larger rural parcels would be higher.   

 

Board Member Madison asked for details on the Capstone request. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that Capstone is aware of the City requirement.  He stated that the 

City has created a list of pre-approved soil suppliers.  He stated that if an alternate supplier is used, 

the developer/resident would have to have the soil tested.   

 

Board Member Madison asked where the soggy yards are occurring for Capstone. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that could occur in swale areas that are lower in elevation.  He 

provided additional information on the grading requirement of the City.   

 

Board Member Madison referenced a relation of flat lots that use sump pumps and soggy lawns 

and asked if there is a requirement for drain tile for flat lots. 

 

City Planner Anderson replied that the City does not have that requirement.   

 

Board Member Fetterley asked if there are unintended consequences that could arise from 

changing the topsoil requirement.   

 

City Planner Anderson stated that Capstone is not requesting to eliminate the topsoil requirement 

but is asking to eliminate the MnDOT certified soil requirement and instead use a standard topsoil 

mix.  He stated that standard topsoil would have between one and three percent organic material 

while the City’s specification requires at least five percent organic material.  He stated that the 

perception could be that additional watering is required but did not believe homeowners think 

along those lines.  He stated that in relation to erosion control, that is considered to be met once 



 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 4 of 6 

sod is installed or if grass seed is used, once grass has been fully established.  He did not think a 

change in the topsoil specification would result in greater erosion concerns.   

 

Board Member Fetterley stated that if there is less quality soil, people may water more frequently 

or not water enough to maintain grass/sod.   

 

City Planner Anderson stated that multiple professors at the University of Minnesota have said 

that grass does not truly die, as it only goes dormant and once watered again, most will start 

growing again.   

 

Chairperson Valentine referenced the regulations of neighboring communities and whether they 

have a soil type specification as well as depth. 

 

City Planner Anderson confirmed that he would obtain that information from neighboring 

communities prior to the next time this topic is discussed, specifically what the definition of topsoil 

is, the amount of topsoil that is required, and the manner in which topsoil is required to be applied.  

He was unsure that any other communities have identified the premium topsoil specification that 

Ramsey has identified.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau asked if there would be a different definition of base soil for 

neighboring communities, specifically whether their base soil is also sand or perhaps clay. 

 

Chairperson Valentine agreed that it would be important to compare other communities that have 

a similar sandy base soil that Ramsey has. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that Plymouth has clay soils and therefore comparing their 

requirements to Ramsey’s would be like comparing apples to oranges.  He agreed that it would be 

more important to focus on areas like Elk River and Andover as those are similarly growing 

communities that also have sandy soils.  He stated that although Blaine is more developed, they 

also have sandy soils and perhaps that would also be a good comparison.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau stated that it would also be interesting to find out the other 

communities’ orientation on water conservation.  He noted that Ramsey is very orientated towards 

water conservation and if other communities do not share that concern, they may not have the same 

requirements.  He stated that it is his understanding that Ramsey is handling the majority of the 

recharge of the aquifer while the discharge is being shared.   

 

Board Member Fetterley referenced the educational standpoint and stated that perhaps there could 

be brainstorming on the information that would need to be shared.  She noted that there are 

different areas of the community, noting that her property has no topsoil and is mostly sand and 

some property owners have City water while others have well water and therefore there would 

need to be different educational information shared to different property owners. 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that the Board previously developed a water conservation toolbox 

that could be updated and perhaps there could be discussion of time appropriate information shared 

in the City newsletter and on the website for this topic.  He stated that part of the challenge is that 

the City can make the information available but cannot make people read the information.  He 



 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 5 of 6 

stated that perhaps there would be an opportunity to include information in the new resident 

mailing and packet that is made available to new residents.   

 

Board Member Fetterley asked if the Board could target the irrigation companies that work in this 

area to assist in education of homeowners.  She stated that her family has an irrigation company 

they work with that actually suggested the smart sensor.   

 

City Planner Anderson stated that existing irrigation systems are not subject to the smart sensor 

requirement and explained that the intention was that any new systems installed would need to 

have the sensor.   

 

City Council Liaison stated that the City’s Communication Specialist could also possibly assist in 

the educational component.   

 

City Planner Anderson confirmed that he would likely be working with the Communication 

Specialist on the educational components.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau asked the timeline of when this would move forward to the 

Council. 

 

City Planner Anderson reviewed the potential schedule for this item noting that perhaps this would 

move to the Council in November or December.  He stated that if there is any change, his intent 

would be to implement the change prior to the construction season in 2019.   

 

City Council Liaison LeTourneau stated that he will appreciate the input of the Board Members at 

the future discussions in order to better represent their opinion when this does move forward to the 

City Council.   

 

City Planner Anderson confirmed that to be his intention.  He noted that the intent tonight was 

simply to introduce the discussion to the Board and obtain input on what the Board would find 

helpful for the next discussion. 

 

Board Member Moore stated that it would be helpful to have the information from the City 

Engineer on the University of Minnesota session he attended regarding topsoil and watering.   

 

6. BOARD / STAFF INPUT 

 

 Summer Recycling Event – 265 Vehicles 

 

City Planner Anderson stated that the summer recycling event was held at the end of July.  He 

reported that there were 265 vehicles at the event, along with two walkers.  He stated that people 

are taking advantage of the event and estimated about 50 more vehicles at this summer’s event 

compared to the 2017 summer event.  He believed that the participation would continue to grow 

along with the other recycling events.  He highlighted some of the significant items that were 

received through the event.   

 

Board Member Moore stated that she saw far more advertising for the spring event than the fall or 

summer events and commended staff for the marketing efforts. 



 

Environmental Policy Board / August 20, 2018 

Page 6 of 6 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion by Board Member Fetterley and seconded by Board Member Covart to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________ 

Chris Anderson 

City Planner 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

JoAnn Shaw 

Community Development Secretary 

 

 

Drafted by Amanda Staple 

TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 

 


